

NEW JERSEY CITY UNIVERSITY



Request for Proposals

Upgrade Services – Oracle/PeopleSoft Enterprise
Campus Solutions

RFP #18-019

Issuance Date: 8/30/2018

Bid Opening: 9/18/2018

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	INFORMATION FOR BIDDERS	3
1.1	BACKGROUND	3
1.2	PURPOSE AND INTENT	3
1.3	SOLICITATION SCHEDULE	5
1.4	ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	6
2.	SCOPE OF WORK	9
2.1	NJCU ORACLE PEOPLESOFT ENTERPRISE ENVIRONMENT	9
2.2	UPGRADE GOALS AND OBJECTIVES	9
2.4	PROJECT TIMELINE	11
2.5	RESOURCE AVAILABILITY	12
2.6	CAMPUS SOLUTIONS SYSTEM UPGRADE REQUIREMENTS:	13
2.7	ADDITIONAL UPGRADE CONSIDERATIONs	14
2.8	ADDITIONAL WORK	16
3.	SUBMISSION DELIVERABLES	17
3.1	REQUIRED COMPONENTS OF AN INTEGRATED PACKAGE	17
3.2	ORGANIZATIONAL SUPPORT AND EXPERIENCE	18
4.	BID PROPOSAL PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION	20
4.1	GENERAL	20
4.2	BID PROPOSAL DELIVERY AND IDENTIFICATION	20
4.3	BID PROPOSAL CONTENT	20
5.	FINANCIAL PROPOSAL	22
6.	NEW JERSEY CITY UNIVERSITY TERMS AND CONDITIONS	23
7.	APPENDIX A	31
7.1	CURRENT APPLICATIONS	31
7.2	CURRENT CUSTOMIZATIONS - CAMPUS SOLUTIONS	33
7.3	CAMPUS SOLUTIONS AND PORTAL TECHNICAL INFRASTRUCTURE	33
7.4	HARDWARE:	34

1.1 BACKGROUND

New Jersey City University (NJCU), located in the City of Jersey City, is one of the nine state colleges and Universities in New Jersey. The University opened its doors as the New Jersey Normal School of Jersey City on September 12, 1929, with 331 students and one building on campus, Hepburn Hall. Eighty years later, more than 8,000 degree-seeking students enjoy the fifty-two acre campus, which now features fourteen buildings. The mission of New Jersey City University is to provide a diverse population with an excellent university education. The University is committed to the improvement of the educational, intellectual, cultural, socioeconomic, and physical environment of the surrounding urban region and beyond. Through implementation of its mission, New Jersey City University has realized its vision of becoming a nationally recognized leader in urban public higher education. New Jersey City University is committed to its urban mission by: sustaining, celebrating, and promoting academically an understanding of community diversity; tapping the rich resources of the urban setting and cultures for the benefit of its learners; and employing its knowledge resources, via faculty and students and with partner organization, to identify and solve urban challenges.

NJCU is also creating a 21-acre University Place Development, which will blend academic buildings, recreational facilities, and mixed-use residential, retail, and commercial space with landscaped public areas and walkways. In expanding its campus, NJCU expects to create an urban village that will enrich the surrounding neighborhood and will encourage its neighbors to enjoy the shops, theatre and performing arts programs, cafes, and public outdoor spaces that are part of the plan. The site is bordered by Route 440, West Side Avenue, Carbon Place and the Home Depot Property. Construction began in 2012 with the development of the infrastructure, including placement of sewer lines, utilities and streets. The final stage, the construction of buildings, will be handled in phases.

1.2 PURPOSE AND INTENT

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:64-54, New Jersey City University ("NJCU" or the "University") is issuing this document, a Request for Proposals ("RFP") for qualified consulting firms for services related to the upgrade of its PeopleSoft Campus

Solutions from application version 9.0 to application version 9.2 and a Tools upgrade from version 8.55.xx to version 8.55x/8.56/8.57.

The intent of this RFP is to award a contract to a responsible bidder, whose bid, conforming to this RFP, is most advantageous to NJCU, price and other factors considered. Should additional work be required that falls under the subject of the awarded contract during the contract term the University reserves the right to separately procure the individual requirements and subsequently requesting the contractor to submit a written proposal and upon approval, a purchase order will be issued to authorize the work.

The University considers any information which it may have released either orally or in writing prior to the issuance of this RFP, to be preliminary in nature and the University shall not be bound by such information.

The University's obligation is contingent upon the availability of funds.

1.2.1 CONTRACT TERMS

The intent of this RFP is to award a contract to the responsible bidder, whose bid, conforming to this RFP, is most advantageous to NJCU, price and other factors considered. It is anticipated that the contract will commence in November 2018 and will conclude in July of 2019.

If, at any time during the term of this award either the University or the vendor considers terminating the agreement, they shall give the other party written notice that it is considering such action, which notice shall set forth with sufficient specificity such party's reasons for contemplating termination. During the following thirty- (30) day period the parties shall discuss, in good faith, the party's reasons for considering termination in an effort to avoid the need for such action. Following the thirty (30) day discussion period, the party considering termination, if not fully satisfied, may elect to terminate the agreement by giving the other party thirty (30) days written notice.

Should additional work be required, which is beyond the scope of this RFP but is related to the overall contract, the vendor will be requested to submit a written proposal and upon approval, a purchase order will be issued to authorize the work.

1.2.2 SUPPLIER DIVERSITY

New Jersey City University recognizes the importance of supplier diversity in its procurement practices. The University has a diverse student, staff and faculty population. In conjunction with the University's overall commitment to diversity and inclusion, the University is committed to contracting with qualified suppliers from all

parts of the business community in procuring needed goods and services. By encouraging the participation of Small Business Enterprises (SBEs), Minority Business Enterprises (MBEs) and Women Business Enterprises (WBEs), collectively SMWBEs, in the procurement process, the University strengthens contracting opportunities for SMWBEs, while at the same time providing a value added strategy that increases competition to ensure that the University's funds are maximized.

1.3 SOLICITATION SCHEDULE

EVENT	DATE
RFP Issued	August 30, 2018
Questions Due from Bidders	September 6, 2018
NJCU Response to Bidders with advertised Addendum #1	September 12, 2018
Bid Proposals Due	September 18, 2018, by 2:00pm

1.3.1 QUESTION AND ANSWER PERIOD

Inquiries regarding this RFP must be submitted in writing and can either be e-mailed to Edie DelVecchio, edelvecchio@njcu.edu and Amanda McGee, emailed edelvecchio@njcu.edu and <a href="mailed-edelvecchio@njcu.edu"

The cut-off date for questions and inquiries relating to this RFP is indicated on the solicitation schedule, section 1.3. Addendum to this RFP, if any, will be posted on the Bidding Opportunities webpage and emailed to anyone who downloaded the bid on and after the date per 1.3 Solicitation Schedule

Telephone calls will not be permitted.

NOTE: If questions are directed to any University employee other than the aforementioned designees your firm will be disqualified from further consideration.

1.3.2 SUBMISSION OF BID PROPOSAL

In order to be considered for award, the bid proposal must be received by Procurement Services at the appropriate location by the required time in a sealed envelope. The date and time is indicated on the cover sheet. To respond to this proposal, vendors should:

Submit one (1) hard copy marked original, nine (9) additional hard copies, and one (1) digital copy on either CD or flash drive of its proposal in accordance with the bid submission deadline contained herein, which must be received no later than **2:00 PM on September 18, 2018** to the following location:

New Jersey City University 2039 J.F. Kennedy Blvd. Jersey City, NJ 07305 Procurement Services Department Hepburn Hall, Room 111 Attention: Edie DelVecchio Assistant Vice President of Business Services

Responses received after this time and date will not be considered. E-mailed and/or faxed proposals will not be accepted. The University is not responsible for lost or misdirected documents. Bids must be enclosed in a sealed envelope/package bearing the name of the Bidder and RFP # 18-019 clearly marked on the outside of the envelope.

The prospective bidder assumes sole responsibility for submitting a complete bid proposal in response to this RFP. No special consideration will be given after bid proposals are opened because of a bidder's failure to comply with all requirements of the RFP.

1.4 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1.4.1 BIDDER RESPONSIBILITY

The University assumes no responsibility for the completeness or the accuracy of any information presented in this RFP, or otherwise distributed or made available during this procurement process, except as expressly stated to the contrary. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the University will not be bound by or be responsible for any explanation or interpretation of the proposed documents other than those prepared in writing. In no event may a Proposer to this RFP rely on any oral statement made by the University or any of the University's agents, employees, advisors or consultants.

Should a Proposer find discrepancies in or omissions from, this RFP and related documents, the Proposer shall immediately notify the University, in writing, and a written addendum of instructions, if necessary, will be emailed to each Proposer.

Every Proposer requesting an interpretation of this RFP will be responsible for delivering such requests to the University in writing and within the time limit set forth in Section 1.3

The University considers any information which it may have released either orally or in writing prior to the issuance of this RFP to be preliminary in nature and the University shall not be bound by such information.

Proposers should satisfy themselves, by personal investigation and any other means they deem necessary, as to the conditions affecting the proposed Project and the cost thereof. Proposers are solely responsible for conducting their own independent research and due diligence for their preparation of the Proposals and the subsequent delivery of services under the Project Documents.

1.4.2 COST LIABILITY

The University assumes no responsibility and bears no liability for cost incurred by a bidder in the preparation and submittal of a bid proposal in response to this RFP.

1.4.3 CONTENTS OF BID PROPOSAL

Subsequent to bid opening all information submitted by a bidder in the bid proposal is considered public information, except as may be exempted from public disclosure by the Open Public Records Act [OPRA], N.J.S.A. 47:1A-1 et seq., and the common law.

The University reserves the right to complete its evaluation process prior to making bid tabulations available, through OPRA requests.

1.4.4 PRICE ALTERATION

Bid prices must be typed or written in ink. Any price change (including "white-outs") must be initialed. Failure to initial price changes shall preclude a contract award from being made to the bidder.

1.4.5 BID ERRORS

A bidder may request that its bid proposal be withdrawn prior to bid opening. Such a request must be made, in writing, to the Assistant Vice President of Business Services. If the request is granted, the bidder may submit a revised bid proposal as long as the revised bid proposal is received prior to the announced date and time for the opening of the bid proposals and at the place specified.

If, after the opening of bid proposals but before contract award, a bidder discovers an error in its bid proposal, the bidder may make written request to the Assistant Vice President of Business Services for authorization to withdraw its bid proposal from consideration for award. Evidence of the bidder's good faith in making this

request shall be used in making the determination. The factors that will be considered are that the mistake is so significant that to enforce the contract resulting from the bid proposal would be unconscionable; that the mistake relates to a material feature of the contract; that the mistake occurred notwithstanding the bidder's exercise of reasonable care; and that the University will not be significantly prejudiced by granting the withdrawal of the bid proposal.

If, during the evaluation of bid proposals received, an obvious pricing error made by a potential contract awardee is found, the University's Contract Administrator shall issue written notice to the bidder. The bidder will have five days after receipt of the notice to confirm its pricing. If the bidder fails to respond, its bid proposal shall be considered withdrawn, and no further consideration shall be given it.

If it is discovered that there is an arithmetic disparity between the unit price and the total extended price, the unit price shall prevail. If there is any other ambiguity in the pricing other than a disparity between the unit price and extended price and the bidder's intention is not readily discernible from other parts of the bid proposal, the Contract Administrator may seek clarification from the bidder to ascertain the true intent of the bid proposal.

ed: 8/30/2018 Page 8

2. SCOPE OF WORK

Summary of the Campus Solutions System Upgrade:

2.1 NJCU ORACLE PEOPLESOFT ENTERPRISE ENVIRONMENT

New Jersey City University (NJCU) is currently utilizing several modules of the PeopleSoft Campus Solutions System, specifically Admissions, Advising, Student Records, Financial Aid, Student Financials and Campus Community.

Access to these applications for administrative and student self-service users is provided through the Oracle PeopleSoft Enterprise Portal/Interaction Hub. A full description is included in Appendix A.

2.2 <u>UPGRADE GOALS AND OBJECTIVES</u>

NJCU plans to upgrade the PeopleSoft Campus Solutions System from Application version 9.0 to Application version 9.2 and a Tools version from 8.55.xx to 8.55x or higher. The Enterprise Portal/Interaction Hub may also need to be upgraded (Tools Release 8.55.2X) to match with the selected CS Tools version.

NJCU has identified the following upgrade goals and objectives:

- 2.2.1 Implement PeopleSoft Fluid User Interface:
 - a. Fluid User Interface for the Student Center and all the self-service student transactions.
 - b. Enterprise Component features like forms and approval builder.
 - c. Fluid WorkCenters.
- 2.2.2 Improved PeopleTools Features:
 - WorkCenters.
 - b. Dashboards.
 - c. Pivot Grids.
 - d. Activity Guides.
- 2.2.3 Assist Financial Aid office to develop new packaging plans and streamline the packaging process for early aid, external awards for freshman and continuing students.
- 2.2.4 Migration of the current modules and existing interfaces to Application version 9.2 and development of any required configurations necessary to enable their functionality in the new environment.

Upgrade Services – Oracle/PeopleSoft Campus Solutions RFP# 18-019
Date Issued: 8/30/2018

- 2.2.5 Review and revision of business process documentation to ensure consistency with the new release environment.
- 2.2.6 Review and validation of current configuration in the 9.0 environment, assessment of its appropriateness for the version 9.2 environment, and recommendations for necessary changes.
- 2.2.7 Replacement of selected existing customizations and modifications with delivered functionality in version 9.2 or by using page and field configuration, page composer and event mapping.
- 2.2.8 Implementation of additional selected features that are available in version 9.2.
- 2.2.9 Re-application of selected existing customizations.
- 2.2.10 Integration with the PeopleSoft Enterprise Portal/Interaction Hub, Financials and Supply Chain Management and Human Capital Management databases.
- 2.2.11 Development of testing protocols and scripts.
- 2.2.12 Preparation of training materials for Administrative and Student self-service users.
- 2.2.13 Maintenance of current existing interfaces to third-party applications.
- 2.2.14 Post production support.

NJCU IT staff will supplement many of the upgrade activities, including project management and re-application of many of the customizations and modifications.

2.3 NEED FOR CONSULTING SERVICES

NJCU anticipates utilizing approximately 5+ FTE consultants, and is soliciting bids for consulting services related to the following components of the upgrade project:

- 2.3.1 Application Support in Upgrade Impact Areas
 - a. Admissions, Self Service and Campus Community (1 FTE)
 - i. Functional leadership and support in basic upgrade
 - ii. Delta session to demonstrate new features in fluid and classic
 - iii. Any other important enhancement/best practices in module
 - e. Student Records (1 FTE)
 - i. Functional leadership and support in basic upgrade
 - ii. Delta session to demonstrate new features in fluid and classic

- iii. Any other important enhancement/best practices in module
- f. Advising (1 FTE)
 - i. Functional leadership and support in basic upgrade
 - ii. Delta session to demonstrate new features in fluid and classic
 - iii. Any other important enhancement/best practices in module
- g. Student Financials (1 FTE)
 - i. Functional leadership and support in basic upgrade
 - ii. Delta session to demonstrate new features in fluid and classic
 - iii. Any other important enhancement/best practices in module
- h. Financial Aid (1 FTE)
 - i. Functional leadership and support in basic upgrade
 - ii. Delta session to demonstrate new features in fluid and classic
 - iii. Develop new packaging plans and streamline the packaging process for early aid, external awards for freshman and continuing students
 - iv. Any other important enhancement/best practices in module
- i. Technical Support (X FTE)
 - i. Demo, Initial, the next two/three pass events and production event
 - ii. Support to implement Elastic Search
 - iii. Support to implement Fluid pages
 - iv. Support to convert AAWS application and classic approval pages to fluid
 - v. Support to convert workflow to AWE
 - vi. Security Review and Modification
 - vii. Application Messaging/Integration Broker Review and Modifications
 - viii. Technical Portal Support for unified navigation for CS
 - ix. Support to upgrade Peopletools for the Interaction Hub to 8.56x and upgrade/configure the Integration broker/messaging server.
- j. Post Upgrade Support

2.4 PROJECT TIMELINE

NJCU wants to have the demo and initial upgrade pass created beginning in November 2018, in order to have an environment with NJCU data for fit-gap/delta analysis. It is anticipated that functional consultants will begin fit-gap analysis in the initial pass database in January, 2019. NJCU has targeted the production upgrade in

Summer 2019. Tentative date for upgrade event is planned to be from 7/12/19 thru 7/14/19. These dates are subject to change.

2.5 RESOURCE AVAILABILITY

For purposes of staffing the upgrade project team, NJCU will provide the following resources at the indicated levels:

Role	#	FTE per Person
Project Manager	1	50%
Database Administrator	1	50%
Portal Administrator/Integration Specialist	1	50%
Security Lead	1	50%
Functional Admissions and Campus Community Module Subject Matter Expert	1	25%
Admissions Sponsor	1	25%
Functional Student Records Module Subject Matter Expert	1	25%
Student Records Sponsor	1	25%
Functional Advising Module Subject Matter Expert	1	25%
Advising Sponsor	1	25%
Functional Student Financials Module Subject Matter Expert	1	25%
Student Financials Sponsor	1	25%
Functional Financial Aid Module Subject Matter Expert	1	25%
Financial Aid Sponsor	1	25%
PS Technical Developers	3	50%
General Ledger Interface Subject Matter Expert (Financials, and Human Resources)	1	25%

Date Issued: 8/30/2018 Page 12

2.6 CAMPUS SOLUTIONS SYSTEM UPGRADE REQUIREMENTS:

The following provides specific requirements that apply to the CS Upgrade to release 9.2.

2.6.1 Campus Solutions System

Number of Campus Solutions Users

- The approximate number of users accessing the CS System is as follows:
- Campus Solutions Self Service Users (current and former students, faculty) – 79,634 (not all of which are actively signing on)
 Upgrade Impact Areas for which Consulting Support Is Required

i. Knowledge Resource for Upgrade – NJCU will need consulting resources to provide knowledge to NJCU IT staff on planning and executing the Campus Solutions upgrade, and in assisting NJCU in resolving issues. Guidance may be needed to review the options available using Cloud infrastructure. NJCU will need help in deciding all the upgrade scenarios that need to be taken into account for the different tools versions. It is NJCU's expectation that the consulting resource(s) serving in this role will have broad experience and skills in the Campus Solutions modules, and is able to provide guidance in general upgrade areas or has access to other resources that can provide this service. The consultant must provide documentation as part of the knowledge transfer.

- ii. Consulting resource(s) should demonstrate the new functionality and perform a fit-gap analysis in the upgraded initial pass database or MTP database. Guidance will be required in the configuration setup, redesign of business processes if needed, implementation of the features if required, documentation and training.
- iii. Financial Aid Packaging The Consulting Resource should review existing packaging plans, propose changes to streamline process and develop new repackaging plans, external awards load, mass awards cancellation based on the FA office needs.

2.6.4 Technical

- a. Upgrade Impact Areas for which Consulting Support Is Required
 - i. Demo, Initial Pass, all MTP Passes and Production Event NJCU requires support in creating the demo, initial pass, all the move to production passes (2 or 3) and production go-live event of the upgrade of CS from application version 9.0 to 9.2 and from tools version 8.55.xx to the latest tools version of 8.56x or 8.57. NJCU also requires that the Consulting Vendor work in collaboration with NJCU's DBAs during the required steps of the upgrade and the NJCU Developers for carry-forward customizations. NJCU DBA will install and implement Elastic Search with the support of Consultant when needed. Support will be needed to implement fluid pages, convert AAWS application to fluid format and convert from workflow to AWE. The Consulting Vendor is also expected to document issues encountered and their resolutions. NJCU is requesting that consulting vendors responding to this RFP provide costs associated with the tasks, approximate

- length of time and level of effort, and scheduling opportunities. NJCU requires having an initial pass, with NJCU data in the 9.2 environment, available for Fit Gap sessions and to begin testing.
- ii. Security Review/Modification NJCU requires that the Consulting Vendor review the current security setup of all necessary areas of the application with the IT Security Administrator and recommend changes and provide support.
 - Application Messaging/Integration Broker Review and Modifications –
 NJCU requires that the Consulting Vendor review all the messaging setup with IT staff from CS to Enterprise Portal/Interaction Hub, FSCM and HCM and vice versa, and recommend changes and provide support.
- iii. Interaction Hub NJCU wishes to have support for the unified navigation for CS in the Enterprise Portal/Interaction HUB. NJCU also needs support in upgrade issues encountered by our DBA if the Interaction Hub has to be upgraded to the latest tools release to match with the CS tools release.

2.6.5 Post Upgrade Support

NJCU wishes to keep consulting resources onsite for the approximate two-week period following the production upgrade to assist NJCU IT staff in responding to upgrade issues.

2.7 ADDITIONAL UPGRADE CONSIDERATIONS

a. Interfaces with Other Systems

NJCU utilizes several third party products that integrate with the Oracle PeopleSoft Enterprise Systems. The functionality delivered through these systems must be operational in the 9.2 environment. NJCU may need Consulting support in this area. Please see Appendix A for more information. Current interfaces are:

- i. Infosilem NJCU uses Infosilem to do class scheduling and room scheduling and uses custom interfaces to do two-way integration i.e. to extract data from the systems to load the data into the other.
- ii. Data Warehouse Data is extracted from PeopleSoft on a daily basis and loaded into a reporting database for Cognos Business Analytics reporting.
- iii. Blackboard Learn Data is extracted from PeopleSoft on a regular basis to update the NJCU Learning Management System
- Sirsi Data is extracted from PeopleSoft on a frequent basis to update the NJCU Library System
- v. TouchNet NJCU uses the TouchNet Payment Gateway to support the PeopleSoft feature 'Make A Payment' for Online Credit Card and eCheck Processing. In addition, students can view their account information, their bill and payment plans.

Upgrade Services – Oracle/PeopleSoft Campus Solutions RFP# 18-019
Date Issued: 8/30/2018

- vi. Experian Quality Assurance Service (QAS) NJCU uses QAS Batch and Pro to validate address data during online entry of personal data by Campus Solutions and Human Resources users.
- vii. CollegeNet Resource 25 (R25), Schedule 25 (S25) NJCU uses CollegeNet's Resource 25, Schedule 25, SIS Interface, and Web Viewer to support scheduling of classes and events.
- viii. The Common Application Undergraduate students apply to NJCU using Common App and this data is loaded into PeopleSoft using File Parser.
- ix. Diebold Data is extracted from PeopleSoft on a daily basis to update the NJCU One Card System for parking, access rights to buildings.
- x. RAVE Data is extracted from PeopleSoft for emergency notification mass communication.
- xi. Hobsons Radius Software Data is exported from PeopleSoft into Radius to facilitate communications from within Radius.
- xii. Ruffalo Noel Levitz Data is extracted from PeopleSoft into RNL's software to analyze student admissions and retention and how financial Aid is dispersed.
- xiii. Education Advisory Board (EAB) Student Success Collaborative Data is extracted from PeopleSoft regularly and loaded into EAB software to help Faculty and Advisors with advising students.
- xiv. AwardSpring Scholarship Software Data is extracted from PeopleSoft to Import the data into AwardSpring to provide the student the ability to apply for scholarships and to help NJCU to identify students who would qualify for specific scholarships.
- xv. TK20's CampusWide System Data is extracted from PeopleSoft and loaded into TK20 to help with collecting and managing academic and non-academic departmental assessment activities.
- xvi. PyraMED Health Systems Data is extracted from PeopleSoft and loaded into PyraMed to provide services to students and employees.
- xvii. CampusLabs System Data is extracted from PeopleSoft and loaded into CampusLabs to have students do evaluations regarding courses, teaching content, instructor and learning experience. This is to provide feedback to faculty on instructional methods and learning outcomes.
- xviii. NJ Transfer Electronic transcripts for applicants from community colleges in NJ are downloaded and loaded into PeopleSoft using custom processes.
- xix. Raiser's Edge (Fund raising) Alumni data is extracted from PeopleSoft and loaded into Raiser's Edge.
- xx. DubLabs Mobile App NJCU Mobile app is being provided by using DubLab's app which uses PeopleSoft's web services for integration to provide self-service features to students and faculty on their mobile device.
- xxi. AAWS Undergrad Application The custom Undergrad application uses AAWS to load the bio-demo and application data into Admissions tables.
- xxii. eRezLife Software Data is extracted from PeopleSoft and loaded into eRezlife. Room and board charges are computed and extracted from eRezlife and loaded into PeopleSoft.

Upgrade Services – Oracle/PeopleSoft Campus Solutions RFP# 18-019

- xxiii. Civitas Data is extracted from PeopleSoft and loaded into Civitas.
- xxiv. CourseLeaf CAT and CIM Course data is extracted from PeopleSoft and loaded into CourseLeaf Catalog Management system.
- xxv. Royall EAB Admissions data is extracted from PeopleSoft and loaded into Royall.
- xxvi. College Scheduler This product integrates with the Enrollment functions and provides students and administrators ease with planning a schedule and enrollment.
- xxvii. Guide App Data is extracted to EAB's app Guide to help new students to get acquainted with their routine and to dos.

a. Enterprise Integration

NJCU deploys the PeopleSoft Enterprise Portal/Interaction Hub and has positioned it as the gateway to all enterprise applications. This approach supports our strategic decision to improve the effectiveness and efficiency of our communications with our internal and external constituencies. The decisions made during the upgrade project on new functionality will be made in the context of this strategy.

Delivered processes that require integration are used to message accounting lines, chartfields between CS and FSCM databases.

Owner-Subscriber method is used to synchronize creation of oprids, bio-demo data, job data in CS, and HCM databases.

2.8 ADDITIONAL WORK

Should additional work be required, which is beyond the scope of this RFP but is related to the overall contract, the vendor will be requested to submit a written proposal and upon approval, a purchase order will be issued to authorize the work.

3. SUBMISSION DELIVERABLES

3.1 REQUIRED COMPONENTS OF AN INTEGRATED PACKAGE

- 3.1.2 Solution Vendors are required to propose a solution that will most effectively enable NJCU to achieve its upgrade objectives. NJCU will select a vendor whose proposal and qualifications best meet its needs. NJCU reserves the right to exclude any or all parts of the above-described activities from the Statement of Work(s) associated with this RFP, and to determine how it uses its own staff in partnership with the successful bidder to accomplish the upgrade objectives.
- 3.1.3 Cost Vendors are required to provide a statement of costs that are associated with the basic upgrade and the upgrade impact areas. NJCU will make a determination during the proposal review process on each of those aspects to include or exclude from the upgrade project and the associated Statement of Work. This information should be provided by completing and submitting with the proposal the **Schedule of Estimated Costs and Hours** found in Section 5. Average hourly rates are quoted without expenses. Vendors should include in the proposal their policy for assessing expenses.
- 3.1.4 Resources Vendors are required to provide a statement of the consulting resources that will be assigned to the project in order to complete the upgrade in the required time.
- 3.1.5 Project Organization Chart Vendors are required to provide a representative project organization chart showing both respondent and NJCU staff.
- 3.1.6 Consultant Identification and Resumes The Vendor must describe how appropriate consultant staff will be identified and assigned to NJCU for each of the project phases. The Vendor must provide resumes of staff most likely to be assigned to the project, indicating their current certification status, their completed training, and their experience in performing similar upgrades in the Campus Solutions System. These individuals must be available for interviews, if NJCU makes this request.
- 3.1.7 Current PeopleSoft Upgrade Projects The Vendor must describe in detail Oracle PeopleSoft 9.2 Campus Solutions upgrade projects in which it is or has been involved. Include information on when the project commenced, the project duration, and the modules involved.
- 3.1.8 Upgrade Methodology The Vendor must describe in detail its Oracle PeopleSoft Upgrade methodology and the steps that would be performed to accomplish an upgrade. The Vendor must include a preliminary, high-level project plan.
- 3.1.9 Post Upgrade Support The Vendor must describe the support it typically provides post upgrade, and especially for the activities related to year-end close.

Upgrade Services – Oracle/PeopleSoft Campus Solutions RFP# 18-019
Date Issued: 8/30/2018

3.2 ORGANIZATIONAL SUPPORT AND EXPERIENCE

This section shall contain all pertinent information relating to bidder's organization, personnel and experience that would substantiate the firm's qualifications and capabilities to perform the service required by the scope of this RFP. Please provide all the information requested, and tabbed as follows:

- 3.2.1 Indicate if your firm has been certified as a "small business" by the New Jersey Commerce and Economic Growth Commission, now part of the NJ Treasury Department.
- 3.2.2 Describe your firm's policy relative to the prohibition of discriminatory employment practices, affirmative action and equal opportunity and note the minority and female participating employees would serve the University.
- 3.2.3 Describe any pending, concluded or threatened litigation, administrative proceedings or federal or state investigations or audits, subpoenas or other information requests of or involving your firm or owners, principals or employees of your firm during the period beginning January 1, 2005 to present. Describe the nature and status of the matter and the resolution, if concluded. List any sanctions or penalties brought against your firm or any of its personnel (including suspension or debarment) imposed on your firm or any of its personnel by any regulatory or licensing agencies. Please include a description of the reasons for the sanction or penalties and whether such sanctions or penalties are subject to appeal. Please describe any potential conflict that may affect your service to the University.
- 3.2.4 Provide all Forms and Attachments as detailed in Section 4.3.1 of this RFP.
- 3.2.5 Provide a brief history of the firm and its experience qualifications, and success in providing the desired services.
- 3.2.6 Provide information on those individuals assigned to work with the University including documentation of training and experience in providing the desired services. Specifically identify the name and contact information for the individual assigned to act as the coordinator for both the firm's proposal and any subsequent responses required of the firm as a part of the RFP process.
- 3.2.7 Provide a list of all of the firm's clients comparable to the University indicating the length of service of each account. The University may contact and/or visit any of these accounts.
- 3.2.8 Provide a list of institutions of higher education with which the firm has signed a term contract.
- 3.2.9 Provide a list of all clients lost within the last three years which includes:
 - a. A contact name and telephone number
 - b. Length of service at the account

3.2.10 Oral Presentation

Vendors who submit a proposal in response to this RFP may be required to give an oral presentation of their proposal to representatives of the University. This will provide an opportunity for the vendor to clarify or elaborate on his proposal but in no way change the bidder's original bid. The University committee will schedule interviews of short-listed vendors post bid opening. All short-listed firms will be notified of the time and place of the presentation.

4. BID PROPOSAL PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION

4.1 GENERAL

The bidder is advised to read and follow all instruction contained in the RFP, and subsequent Addendums, in preparing and submitting its bid proposal.

Note: Bid Proposals shall not contain URLs (Uniform Resource Locators, i.e. the global address of documents and other resources on the World Wide Web) or web addresses. Inasmuch as the web contains dynamically changing content, inclusion of a URL or web address in a bid response is indicative of potentially changing information. Inclusion of a URL or web address in a bid response implies that bid proposal's content changes as the reference web pages change.

4.2 BID PROPOSAL DELIVERY AND IDENTIFICATION

In order to be considered for award, the bid proposal must be received by Procurement Services at the appropriate location by the required time in a sealed envelope as per Section 1.3.2. The date and time is indicated on the cover sheet.

THE EXTERIOR OF ALL BID PROPOSAL PACKAGES ARE TO BE LABELED WITH THE RFP NUMBER, TITLE, AND THE BIDDERS NAME AND ADDRESS.

Bidders are cautioned to allow adequate delivery time to ensure timely delivery of bid proposal. Late bid proposals are ineligible for consideration.

4.3 BID PROPOSAL CONTENT

4.3.1 MANDATORY SUBMITTAL FORMS

The following forms/certificates are to be included in your Proposal Response, Attachments can be found in Appendix B:

- a) Statement of Compliance (attached)
- b) Affirmative Action Requirements (attached)
- c) Non-Collusion Statement (attached)
- d) Certification and Disclosure of Political Contributions (EO 51 and 117) (attached)

- e) Disclosure of Investment Activities in Iran (attached)
- f) MacBride Principles Certification (attached)
- g) Source Disclosure Certification (EO 129) (attached)
- h) New Jersey Business Registration Certificate
- i) Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification (Current W-9 Form)
- j) Supplier Form (attached)
- k) Terms and Conditions (attached)
- If applicable, NJ Small Business Enterprise (SBE), Woman Business Enterprise (WBE), and/or Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) Certification(s)
- m) Point of Contact Form (attached)

4.3.2 EXTENSION OF MEMBER PRICING

Extension of Pricing for Member Institutions

Will you extend contract prices to other State Colleges and Universi	ties?
--	-------

Yes	No	
-----	----	--

New Jersey City University is a member of the New Jersey Higher Purchasing Association (NJHEPA), whose members include the 4 year Public Colleges and Universities, as well as private institutions; the private Universities include: Princeton University, Seton Hall University, Rider University, and Monmouth University.

Will you extend pricing to members of NJHEPA?

Υ	'es	Ν	lo

Date Issued: 8/30/2018 Page 21

5. FINANCIAL PROPOSAL

Schedule for Estimated Hours and Costs for Upgrade

Task	Total Estimated Hours	Average Hourly Rate	Total Estimated Cost
Application (functional/technical) Support			
in Upgrade Impact Areas			
Functional Leadership and			
Support for Basic Upgrade for			
all the modules:			
Admissions, Self-			
Service, Campus			
Community			
Student Records			
Advising			
Student Financials			
Financial Aid (including			
Packaging support)			
Technical Support			
Demo, Initial Pass, MTP			
Passes; Support to implement			
elastic search and fluid pages			
Production Upgrade Event			
Security Review and			
Modification			
Application			
Messaging/Integration Broker			
Review and Modifications			
Technical Portal – unified			
navigation of CS in Enterprise			
Portal/Interaction Hub			
Development support to convert			
AAWS application to fluid and			
workflow objects to AWE.			
Post Production Support			

6. NEW JERSEY CITY UNIVERSITY TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The following terms and conditions apply to all contract or purchase agreements made with New Jersey City University unless specifically deleted on the University proposal form. Vendors submitting offers to the University must clearly cross out any paragraph they do not agree to meet. Any redaction or change in the University terms and conditions will be factored into the determination of an award of a contract or purchase agreement.

Bidders are notified by this statement that all terms and conditions will become part of any contracts(s) or orders(s) awarded as a request for proposal whether stated in part in summary or by reference. In the event a vendor's terms and conditions conflict with the University, the University terms and conditions shall prevail.

- 6.1 STATE LAW REQUIRING MANDATORY COMPLIANCE BY ALL VENDORS
- 6.1.1 CORPORATE AUTHORITY It is required that all corporations be authorized to do business in the State of New Jersey. Corporations incorporated out the State must file a Certificate of Authority with the Secretary of State, Department of State, State House, Trenton, New Jersey. Refer to N.J.S. A. Title 14A chapter 13-3
- 6.1.2 **ANTI-DISCRIMINATION** All parties to any contract with the New Jersey City University agree not to discriminate in employment and agree to abide by all anti-discrimination laws including those contained within N.J.S.A. 10:2-1 through 10:2-4, N.J.S.A. 10:5-31 through 10:5-38, and all rules and regulations issued there under.
- 6.1.3 **AFFIRMATIVE ACTION** All parties to any contract with the New Jersey City University must comply with P.L. 1975, C. 127.
- 6.1.4 THE WORKER AND COMMUNITY RIGHT TO KNOW ACT (P.L.1983. c. 315: N.J.S.A. 34:5A-1 at seq) requires employers to label all containers of hazardous substances by March 1, 1985. By August 29, 1986, employers must label all containers on University premises. Under the terms of the Act, the University is considered employer, therefore, all goods offered for purchase to the University must be labeled in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
- 6.1.5 **OWNERSHIP DISCLOSURE** Contracts for any work, goods or services cannot be issued to any firm unless prior to or at the time of bid submission the firm has disclosed the names and addresses of all its owners holding 10% or more of the firm's stock or interest. Refer to N.J.P.L. 1977, Chapter 33. (N.J.S.A. 52:25-24.2)
- 6.1.6 **COMPLIANCE-STATE LAWS** It is agreed and understood that any contracts and/or orders placed as a result of this proposal shall be governed and construed and the rights and obligations of the parties here to shall be determined in accordance with the laws of the STATE OF NEW JERSEY.

6.1.7 **COMPLIANCE LAWS** – The vendor must comply with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations applicable to the contract and to the work to be done here under.

6.2 **LIABILITES**

- 6.2.1 **LIABILITY-COPYRIGHT** The Contractor shall hold and save New Jersey City University, its officers, agents, students, servants and employees, harmless from liability of any nature of kind for or on account of the use of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted composition secret process, patented or unpatented invention, article or appliance furnished or used in the performance of his contract.
- 6.2.2. INDEMNIFICATION The contractor shall assume all risk of and agrees to indemnify, defend, and save harmless the New Jersey City University, its officers, agents, students, servants and employees from and against any and all claims, demands, suits, actions, recoveries, judgment and costs and expenses on account of the loss of life, property or injury or damage to the person, body or property of any person or persons whatsoever, which shall arise from or result directly or indirectly from the work and/or materials supplied under the contract. This indemnification obligation is not limited by, but is in addition to the insurance obligations contained in this agreement.
- 6.2.3. INSURANCE The successful bidder shall secure and maintain in force for the term of the contract liability insurance as provided herein. The successful bidder shall provide New Jersey City University with current certificates of insurance for all coverage and renewals thereof which must contain the provision that the insurance provided in the certificate shall not be cancelled for any reason except after thirty days written notice to New Jersey City University, Procurement Services Department.

The insurance to be provided by the successful bidder shall be as follows:

a. Commercial General Liability insurance written on an occurrence form including independent contractor liability, products/completed operations liability, contractual liability, covering but not limited to the liability assumed under the indemnification provisions of this contract. Coverage for bodily injury and property damage claims arising out of the professional acts of the general contractor and subcontractors shall also be included. The policy shall not include any endorsement that restricts or reduces coverage as provided by the ISO CG0001 form without the approval of the University. The minimum limits of liability shall not be less than a combined single limit of one million dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, three million dollars (\$3,000,000) product/completed operations aggregate. A "per project endorsement" shall

- be included, so that the general aggregate limit applies separately to the project that is the subject of this contract.
- b. Comprehensive General Automobile Liability policy covering owned, nonowned, and hired vehicles with minimum limits of \$1,000,000.00 combined single limits.
- c. Compensation insurance applicable to laws of the State of New Jersey and Employer's Liability insurance with a limit of not less than \$1,000,000.00.
 - Upon request, the successful contractor will provide certificates of such insurance to New Jersey City University, Procurement Services Department prior to the start of the contract and periodically during the course of a multi-year contract.
- 6.2.4 PROHIBITED INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES IN IRAN Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:32-55 et seq., a person or entity listed on the Department of the Treasury's List of Persons or Entities Engaging in Prohibited Investment Activities in Iran shall be ineligible to bid on, submit a proposal for, or enter into or renew a contract with a State agency for goods or services.
- 6.3 TERMS GOVERNING ALL PROPOSALS TO NEW JERSEY CITY UNIVERSITY (Unless Otherwise Specified in Bid Specifications)
- 6.3.1 VENDOR RIGHT TO PROTEST-INTENT TO AWARD Within sixty (60) days of a bid opening, the University shall provide to all bidders a copy of a "Notice of Intent to Award a Contract;" and shall notify any nonresponsive/non-responsible bidder of the basis for disqualification, unless, within the sixty (60) day period, the University requests that bidders agree to permit the bids to be held for a longer time period for consideration pending issuance of a "Notice of Intent to Award."

Any bidder, having submitted a proposal in response to this RFP and finding cause to protest the University's disqualification of a bid, or notice of intent to award, may make written request to the Director of the Procurement Department setting forth, in detail, the specific grounds for challenging the disqualification of its bid or for challenging the University's intent to award the Contract, as applicable. The protest shall be filed within five (5) business days following the bidder's receipt of written notification that its bid is disqualified or of notice of the intent to award, as applicable.

The University shall consider the written record when deciding a bid protest. The written record may include, but is not limited to, the written protest, any written response to the protest submitted by the lowest responsible bidder, the terms, conditions and requirements of the RFP, the proposals submitted in response to the RFP, the evaluation committee report and/or the award recommendation document,

Upgrade Services – Oracle/PeopleSoft Campus Solutions RFP# 18-019
Date Issued: 8/30/2018

pertinent administrative rules, statutes, and case law, and any associated documentation the University deems appropriate. In cases where no in-person presentation is deemed necessary, the University shall afford the protester and other interested parties a fair opportunity to submit written statements and documents supporting the facts and the legal arguments relevant to the bid protest.

The University has the discretion to determine if an in-person presentation is necessary to reach an informed decision on the issues raised by the protester. An in-person presentation is a fact-finding hearing for the benefit of the University. The University has the discretion to permit attendance at an in-person presentation by those parties likely to be affected by the outcome of the protest. The in-person presentation shall be recorded electronically by the University and the electronic recording shall be available for public access as a "government record" under OPRA.

In those instances where the University determines that an in-person presentation is necessary to reach an informed decision on the issues raised by the protester, the University shall provide written notification to the bid protest participants along with the date of the in-person presentation. Any bidder who intends to be represented by an attorney at an in-person presentation must notify the Director of the Procurement Department no later than two days following receipt of notification of the scheduling of an in-person presentation to give the University an opportunity to have counsel from the Attorney General's Office, Division of Law, attend in person or by telephone. If advance notification is not provided, the University may limit the bidder's attorney to advising and assisting the bidder by submitting questions to be asked of other participants/witnesses at the discretion of the University's presiding officer. The in-person presentation will not be rescheduled in this situation. The University reserves the right to waive any immaterial defects in the bid or the bidding process.

Following the close of the record in the bid protest (for determinations based only upon the written record, the record shall be deemed closed at the end of the business day, five days following the bidder receipt of the "Notice of Intent to Award"; for determinations following an in-person presentation the record shall be deemed closed at the close of the in-person presentation unless or as directed by the presiding officer, whichever is later) the University Contracting Officer shall issue a written decision including findings of fact and conclusions and shall provide copies of the bid protest decision to all participants in the bid protest. The bid protest decision is a final decision of the "Contracting agent", as that term is defined in the State College Contacts Law, N.J.S.A.18A:64-53(b). Notice of award of the Contract following a bid protest decision shall be provided to all bidders, and shall be appealable to the Superior Court of New Jersey, Appellate Division.

6.3.2 **SUBCONTRACTING OR ASSIGNMENT** – The contract may not be subcontracted or assigned by the contractor, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent

of the University. Such consent, if granted, shall not relieve the contractor of any of his/her responsibilities under the contract.

In the event that the bidder proposes to subcontract for the services to be performed under the terms of the contract award, a list of said subcontractors and an itemization of the services to be supplied by them must be stated and attached to the bid for approval.

Nothing contained in the specifications shall be construed as creating any contractual relationship between any subcontractor and the University.

6.3.3 **PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE OR BIDDER** – The bidder herby certifies that: The equipment offered is standard new equipment, as is the manufacturer's latest model in production, with parts regularly used for the type of equipment substituted or applied contrary to manufacturer's recommendations and standard practice.

All equipment supplied to the University and operated by electrical current is UL approved.

All new machines are to guarantee for a period of one year from time of delivery and/or installation and prompt service rendered without charge regardless of geographic location.

Sufficient quantities of parts necessary for proper service to equipment will be maintained to distribution points and service headquarters.

Trained mechanics are regularly employed to make necessary repairs to equipment in the territory from which the service request may originate within a 48 hour period or within the time accepted as industry practice.

The contactor shall immediately replace any material which is rejected for failure to meet the requirements of the University.

All services rendered to the University shall be performed in strict and full accordance with the specifications as agreed to in the contract. A service contract shall not be considered complete until final approval by the University is rendered. Payment to vendors for services rendered may not be made until final University approval is given.

6.3.4 **DELIVERY GUARANTEES** – Deliveries shall be made at the time and in such quantities as ordered in strict accordance with conditions contained in proposal.

The vendor shall be responsible for the delivery of material in first class condition to the University or the purchaser under this contract, and in accordance with good commercial practice.

Items delivered must be strictly in accordance with bid specifications.

In the event delivery of goods or services is not made within the number of days stipulated or under the schedule defined in the specifications, the University may be authorized to obtain the material or service from any available source, the difference in price, if any, to be paid by the contractor failing to meet his commitments.

6.3.5 **LIQUIDATED DAMAGES** – In the event that the Contractor shall fail to comply with any of the conditions herein provided and as covered by the contract, the Director of Purchasing shall notify the Contractor of such failure or default and demand that the same be remedied within five (5) days. In the event of the failure of the Contractor to remedy the same within this period, the Director of Purchasing may take steps to terminate the contract. In this event, the Director may authorize the services to be performed by any available means, the difference between the actual cost paid and the bid of the defaulting Contractor to be deducted from any monies due the defaulting Contractor.

The Contractor will not be liable for circumstances beyond its control. However, any substantial or continuing failure to fully perform any or all of the services herein agreed to be performed by the Contractor, or any event, regardless of cause, which results in a substantial interruption of service, shall entitle New Jersey City University to terminate this Agreement as for cause. However, any right of termination which will arise from any cause beyond the Contractor's reasonable control, or which the Contractor could not reasonably have anticipated or avoided, may be exercised by New Jersey City University with agreed upon payment of termination charges.

- 6.3.6 **UNIVERSITY'S RIGHT TO INSPECT BIDDER'S FACILITIES** The University reserves the right to inspect the bidder's establishment before making an award.
- 6.3.7 **MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS** The contractor shall maintain records for products and/or services delivered against the contract for a period of three (3) years from the date of final payment. Such records shall be made available to the University upon request.
- 6.3.8 **CONFIDENTIALITY CLAUSE** The University and the Contractor agree as part of this award each party shall, and shall cause its personnel, officers, agents, and representatives, to hold and deal with in strict confidence the other party's confidential information. NJCU's confidential information includes all matters relating to its business, including, but not limited to, materials and data that have

Upgrade Services – Oracle/PeopleSoft Campus Solutions RFP# 18-019
Date Issued: 8/30/2018

been disclosed by NJCU to the Contractor and that are not publicly available at the time they are disclosed to Contractor, more specifically, including but not limited to, any and all technical and commercial information, market plans, strategy, personnel data (including, but not limited to census, salary and benefits information), benefits programs, tax filings, any information relating to the drafting of benefit plans, computer programs relating to the above described items, and new products (collectively hereinafter referred to as "Confidential Information").

Contractor's confidential information includes all Contractor's Know-how, Work Product, Deliverables, pricing structures, and other business strategies, and all other matters that the Contractor deems confidential. These confidentiality obligations shall not apply to any information that is now or becomes publicly available other than by a breach of the terms of this Agreement, was known by a party prior to its receipt from the other party, is developed by the recipient independently of any disclosures previously made under this Agreement of such information, or is required to be disclosed by legal process. Except in connection with the performance of services contemplated herein, the Contractor shall not use any trademark or service mark of NJCU or of any parent, subsidiary, or affiliate of NJCU in any published form, literature, or other documents without the express written consent of Client or its affiliates. The Contractor shall not give any press release or press interview on any matter pertaining to NJCU without first obtaining the written consent of NJCU. The Contractor may include NJCU's name on its NJCU list provided to third parties.

The Contractor agrees to hold in trust and confidence all information obtained directly or indirectly in or through the files or records of the University, or disclosed in connection with this Agreement, and to disclose and utilize such information only in connection with and to the extent necessary for the accomplishment of the work required hereunder; provided, however, the Contractor shall not disclose any such information to a third party without the prior written consent of the Contracting Officer or his duly authorized representative.

6.4 TERM RELATING TO PRICE QUOTATION

6.4.1 **PRICE FLUCTUATIONS DURING CONTRACT** – All prices quoted shall be firm and not subject to increase during the period of contract.

In the event of a manufacturer's price decrease during the contract period, the University shall receive the full benefit of such price reduction of any undelivered purchase order and on any subsequent order placed during the contract period. The University must be notified in writing of any price reduction with five (5) days of the effective date.

6.4.2 **DELIVERY COSTS** – Unless noted otherwise in the specifications all prices for items in bid proposals are to be submitted F.O.B. Destination. Proposals submitted

- other than F.O.B. Destination may not be considered. Regardless of the method of quoting shipment, the vendors shall assume all liability and responsibility for the delivery of merchandise in good condition to the University of designated purchaser unless otherwise specified.
- F.O.B. Destination does not cover "spotting" but does not include delivery on the receiving platform of the University unless otherwise specified. No additional charges will be allowed for any transportation costs resulting from partial shipment made at vendors' convenience when a single shipment is ordered. The weights and measures of the University receiving the shipment shall govern.
- 6.4.3 **COD TERMS** Unless otherwise stated in the RFP, C.O.D. terms are not acceptable as part of a bid proposal, and are cause for automatic rejection of a bid.
- 6.4.4 **TAX CHARGES** New Jersey City University is exempt from N.J. Sales, Use Tax and Local Taxes under N.J.S.A. 54:32B-9(a)(1). As a non-profit institution, the University is exempt from Federal Excise Tax. These taxes must not be included in vendor quotations or invoices.
- 6.4.5 **PAYMENT TO VENDORS** Payments for goods and/or services purchased by the University will only be made against the contractor's invoice. The contractor's invoice form in duplicate together with the original Bill of Lading receipt and other related papers must be sent to the consignee on the date of each delivery.

6.5 CASH DISCOUNTS

Cash discounts for periods of less than 15 days will not be considered as factors in the award of contracts for purposes of determining the University's compliance with any discount offered.

- 6.5.1 A discount period shall commence on the day the University receives a properly signed and executed Contractor's invoice form for products and services that have been duly accepted by the University in accordance with the terms, conditions and specifications of the Contract/Purchase Order. If the invoice is received prior to delivery of the goods and services, the discount period begins with the acceptance of the goods or services.
- 6.5.2 The date on the check issued by the University in payment of that invoice shall be deemed the date of the University response to that invoice.

7. APPENDIX A

The Oracle PeopleSoft Enterprise System at New Jersey City University

7.1 CURRENT APPLICATIONS

Production Campus Solutions and Human Capital Management reside in separate databases

7.1.2 CAMPUS SOLUTIONS SYSTEM

- a. Number of Modules Licensed: 6
 - i. Recruiting & Admissions
 - ii. Academic Advisement
 - iii. Student Records
 - iv. Student Financials
 - v. Financial Aid
 - vi. Student Administration Collaborative Applications
 - a. Current Release Levels
 - i. Application: 9.0
 - ii. PeopleTools: 8.55.xx
 - b. Initial Deployment:
 - i. Recruiting & Admissions, Student Records, and Student Financials Fall 1999
 - ii. Financial Aid January 2001
 - Academic Advisement, and Student Administration Collaborative Applications -March 2004

7.1.3 FINANCIAL & SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

- a. Number of Modules Licensed: 5
 - i. General Ledger (including Commitment Control)
 - ii. Accounts Payable
 - iii. Purchasing
 - iv. eProcurement
 - v. Budget (Not in production)
- b. Current Release Levels:
 - i. Application: 9.2

- ii. PeopleTools: 8.55.xx
- c. Initial Deployment:
 - i. General Ledger and Accounts Payable February 2001
 - ii. Purchasing July 2001
 - iii. eProcurement March 2004

7.1.4 HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

- a. Number of Modules Licensed: 4
 - i. Human Resources
 - ii. North American Payroll
 - iii. Base Benefits
 - iv. Human Resources Collaborative Applications
- b. Current Release Levels
 - i. Application: 9.2
 - ii. PeopleTools: 8.55.xx
 - c. Initial Deployment:
 - i. All July 2004

7.1.5 ENTERPRISE PORTAL/INTERACTION HUB

- a. Number of Modules Licensed: N/A
- b. Current Release Levels
 - i. Application: 9.1
 - ii. PeopleTools: 8.55.23
- c. Initial Deployment:
 - i. March 2004

7.2 CURRENT CUSTOMIZATIONS – CAMPUS SOLUTIONS

Object Name	Count
Activities	12
Application Engine	77
Application Engine Sections	129
Business Process	5
Component PeopleCode	84
Component Record Field PeopleCode	317
Component Record PeopleCode	180
Components	689
Fields	2592
HTML	25
Images	61
Indexes	0
Job Definitions	35
Menus	9
Message Definitions	103
Message Nodes	44
Page PeopleCode	126
Pages	929
Permission Lists (bolt-ons)	3857
Process Definitions	644
Queries	8871
Record PeopleCode	2122
Records	2876
Roles	625
SQL	838
SQRs/SQCs	650
Translate Values	1324
Job set	2

7.3 CAMPUS SOLUTIONS AND PORTAL TECHNICAL INFRASTRUCTURE

- RDBMS SQL Server 2014
- Applied Patches and Fixes see below

Current System	Patch Level in Production
Campus Solutions 9.0	PeopleTools 8.55.xx, CS Bundle 50
Enterprise Portal 9.1	PeopleTools 8.55.xx, PS 9.1 Pl003
	EO91 COMMON OBJECTS BUNDLE #13 2014

7.4 <u>HARDWARE:</u>

Enterprise Portal 9.1	Campus Solutions 9.0
Application :Portal Solutions 9.1	Application : CS 9.0
PeopleTools: 8.55.23	PeopleTools: 8.55.xx
Operating System:	Operating System:
Microsoft Windows Server 2012 R2 Standard	Microsoft Windows Server 2012 R2 Standard
Database: MS SQLServer 2014 sp2	Database: MS SQLServer 2014 sp2
Database Size: 31 GB	Database Size: 196 GB
Web server: Oracle WebLogic	Web server: Oracle WebLogic Server 12.1.3
Server 12.1.3	Tuxedo: tuxedo12.1.3.0.0_VS2012 Patch Level 108
Tuxedo: tuxedo12.1.3.0.0_VS2012 Patch Level 108	
	COBOL Compiler: Net Express5.1 WP11
COBOL Compiler: Net Express5.1 WP11	
4 Portal Web Servers 3 Portal Application Servers Portal Database resides on Windows 2-Node Cluster environment FINSQLSRV (Active/Passive)	4 CS/HR Web Servers 3 CS/HR Application Servers CS/HR Database resides on a Windows 2- Node Cluster environment CSADMIN1 (Active/Passive) 1 CS/HR Batch Server

- 1 Dedicated **Messaging Server** for all applications (Portal, CS, HCM & Financial)
- 1 Dedicated Messaging Server for Portal and CS (Remote / 3rd Party)

Campus Solutions	Туре	Сри	Ram
	HP	Intel® Xeon® CPU X5550	
	ProLiant DL360	2.67 GHz (2 Processors)	
WEB SERVERS (4)	G6	4 core, 8 logical	16gb
		Intel® Xeon® CPU X5570	
	HP ProLiant	2.93 GHz (2 Processors)	
APPLICATION SERVERS (3)	DL380 G6	4 core, 8 logical	16gb
	HP	Intel® Xeon® CPU X5670	
DATABASE SERVERS Windows 2-Node Cluster (Active/Passive)	ProLiant DL380	2.93 GHz (2 Processors)	
environment	G6	6 core, 12 logical	96 GB
	HP	Intel® Xeon® CPU X5570	
	ProLiant DL380	2.93 GHz (2 Processors)	
1 CS Batch Server	G6	4 core, 8 logical	32 GB

PORTAL/Interaction HUB	Туре	Сри	Ram
	HP	Intel® Xeon® CPU X5550	
	ProLiant DL360	2.67 GHz (2 Processors)	
PORTAL WEB SERVERS (4)	G6	4 core, 8 logical	16gb
	2 @ HP	Intel® Xeon® CPU X5570	16 GB
	ProLiant DL380	2.93 GHz (2 Processors)	
PORTAL APPLICATION SERVERS(3)	G6	4 core, 8 logical	48 GB

	1 @ HP ProLiant DL360p G8	Intel® Xeon® CPU E5-2640 0 2.50 GHz (2 Processors)		
		6 core, 12 logical		
		Intel® Xeon® CPU X5670		
PORTAL DATABASE	ProLiant	2.93 GHz (2 Processors)		
Windows 2-Node Cluster (Active/Passive) environment	DL380 G6	6 core, 12 logical	64	GB

Appendix B – Required Forms/Certificates

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

1. We, the Undersigned, acting through its authorized officers and intending to be legally bond, agree that this bid proposal shall constitute an offer by the Undersigned to enter into a Contract with the acts and things therein provided, which offer shall be irrevocable for 60 calendar days with additional extension upon consent, from the date of opening hereof and that the University may accept this offer at any time during said period by notifying the Undersigned of the acceptance of said offer.

2.	_	sole proprietor/partnership/corporation created and existing te of, has its business at
	Vendor Name	
	Vendor Address	
	Telephone	
	Fax	
	E-Mail	
	Sign by	
	Proprietor/Principal/Pres	ident
	Attested by	
	Secretary	



PURCHASING DEPARTMENT <u>AFFIRMATIVE ACTION REQUIREMENTS FOR PROCUREMENT,</u> PROFESSIONAL OR SERVICE CONTRACTING

Contractors/Vendors must submit one of the following within seven (7) days of award of

contract:	
	1. If the Contractor/Vendor has a Federal Affirmative Action Plan Approval which consists of a valid letter from the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs.
	A photo copy of the letter of approval is to be submitted to the public agency.2. If the Contractor/Vendor has a Certificate of Employee Information Report.
	A photo copy of the Certificate is to be submitted to the public agency. The number is:
	3. If Contractor/Vendor has none of the above, the public agency is required to provide the Contractor/Vendor with an A.A.302 Affirmative Action Employee Information Report.
NOTE:	The <u>Federal Affirmative Action Plan Approval or the Certificate of Affirmative Action Employee Information Report</u> may be requested prior to the signing of the contract.
	The <u>Affirmative Action Employee Information Report (A.A.302</u>) is only to be provided to the Contractor/Vendor that will be awarded the contract.
	The Public Agency may require the Contractor/Vendor that is to be awarded the contract to submit their Affirmative Action Employee Information Report (marked Public Agency) at the time the signed contract is returned to the Agency.
	The appropriate Affirmative Action document should be submitted by the seventh day after the notification of intent to award a contract or the signing of

If the Contractor/Vendor does not submit the Affirmative Action document within the required time period, the Public Agency <u>may</u> extend the time period to the fourteenth calendar day.

the contract.

If by the fourteenth calendar day the Contractor/Vendor does not submit the Affirmative Action document, the Public Agency <u>must</u> declare the Contractor/Vendor as being non-responsive and award the contract to the next lowest responder.

P.L. 1975, C. 127 (N.J.A.C. 17:27) MANDATORY AFFIRMATIVE ACTION LANGUAGE PROCUREMENT, PROFESSIONAL AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

The contractor or subcontractor, where applicable, will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, marital status, sex, affection or sexual orientation. The contract will take affirmative action to ensure that such applicants are recruited and employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their age, race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, marital status or affection or sexual orientation. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the Public Agency Compliance Officer setting forth provisions of this nondiscrimination clause;

The contractor or subcontractor, where applicable will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to age, race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, marital status, sex, affectional or sexual orientation;

The contractor or subcontractor, where applicable, will send to each labor union or representative or workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided by the agency contracting officer advising the labor union or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments under this Act and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.

The contractor or subcontractor, where applicable, agrees to comply with the regulations promulgated by the Treasurer pursuant to P.L. 1975, c. 127, as amended and supplemented from time to time and the Americans with Disabilities Act.

The contractor or subcontractor agrees to attempt in good faith to employ minority and female workers consistent with the applicable county employment goals prescribed by N.J.A.C. 17:27-5.2 promulgated by the Treasurer pursuant to P.L. 1975, c. 127, as amended and supplemented from time to time or in accordance with a binding determination of the applicable county employment goals determined by the Affirmative Action Office pursuant to N.J.A.C. 17:27-5.2 promulgated by the Treasurer pursuant to P.L. 1975, c. 127, as amended and supplemented from time to time.

The contractor or subcontractor agrees to inform in writing appropriate recruitment agencies in the area, including employment agencies, placement bureaus, colleges, universities, labor unions, that it does not discriminate of the basis of age, race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, marital status, sex,

affectional or sexual orientation and that it will discontinue the use of any recruitment agency which engages in direct or indirect discriminatory practices.

The contractor or subcontractor agrees to revise any of its testing procedures, if necessary, to assure that all personnel testing conforms with the principles of job-related testing, as established by the statutes and court decisions of the State of New Jersey and as established by applicable Federal law and applicable Federal court decisions.

The contractor or subcontractor agrees to review all procedures relating to transfer, upgrading, downgrading and layoff to ensure that all such actions are taken without regard to age, race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, marital status, sex, affectional or sexual orientation and conform with the applicable employment goals, consistent with the statutes and court decisions of the State of New Jersey, and applicable Federal law and applicable Federal court decisions.

The contractor and its subcontractors shall furnish such reports or other documents to the Affirmative Action Office as may be requested by the Office from time to time in order to carry out the purposes of these regulations, and public agencies shall furnish such information as may be requested by the Affirmative Action Office for conducting a compliance investigation pursuant to Subchapter 10 of the Administrative Code (NJAC 17:27).



PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

NON-COLLUSION STATEMENT

DATE:	
New Jersey City University Purchasing Department 2039 Kennedy Boulevard Jersey City, New Jersey 07305	
Jersey City, New Jersey 07303	
This is to certify that the undersigned responder,	, has not, either directly or
indirectly, entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or o	otherwise taken any action in
restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with proposal submitted t	to New Jersey City University
on the day of 2018.	
Signature of Responder	
Corporate Seal:	
Attest:	
Secretary	
Sworn to and subscribed before this	
day of 2018.	
My Commission expires	
Notary Public	

THIS STATEMENT MUST BE COMPLETED AND SIGNED IN ORDER FOR THE RFP RESPONSE TO BE CONSIDERED.

NON-COLLUSION STATEMENT

New Jersey City University requires as a condition precedent to acceptance of RFP responses, a sworn statement executed by, or on behalf, of the person, firm, association or corporation to whom such contract is to be awarded certifying that such person, firm, association or corporation has not, either directly or indirectly, entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with such contract. The form for this sworn statement is included in the proposal and must be properly executed in order to have the RFP response considered.

INFORMATION AND INSTRUCTIONS

For Completing the "Two-Year Vendor Certification and Disclosure of Political Contributions" Form

Background Information

On September 22, 2004, then-Governor James E. McGreevey issued E.O. 134, the purpose of which was to insulate the negotiation and award of State contracts from political contributions that posed a risk of improper influence, purchase of access or the appearance thereof. To this end, E.O. 134 prohibited State departments, agencies and authorities from entering into contracts exceeding \$17,500 with individuals or entities that made certain political contributions. E.O. 134 was superseded by Public Law 2005, c. 51, signed into law on March 22, 2005 ("Chapter 51").

On September 24, 2008, Governor Jon S. Corzine issued E.O. 117 which is designed to enhance New Jersey's efforts to protect the integrity of procurement decisions and increase the public's confidence in government. The Executive Order builds upon the provisions of Chapter 51.

Two-Year Certification Process

Upon approval by the State Chapter 51 Review Unit, the Certification and Disclosure of Political Contributions form is valid for a two (2) year period. Thus, if a vendor receives approval on January 1, 2014, the certification expiration date would be December 31, 2015. Any change in the vendor's ownership status and/or political contributions during the two-year period will require the submission of new Chapter 51/Executive Order 117 forms to the State Review Unit. Please note that it is the vendor's responsibility to file new forms with the State should these changes occur.

State Agency Instructions: Prior to the awarding of a contract, the State Agency should first send an e-mail to CD134@treas.nj.gov to verify the certification status of the vendor. If the response is that the vendor is NOT within an approved two-year period, then forms must be obtained from the vendor and forwarded for review. If the response is that the vendor is within an approved two-year period, then the response so stating should be placed with the bid/contract documentation for the subject project.

Instructions for Completing the Form

NOTE: Please refer to pages 3 and 4 "USEFUL DEFINITIONS for the purposes of Chapter 51 and Executive Order 117" for guidance when completing the form.

Part 1: BUSINESS ENTITY INFORMATION

Business Name - Enter the full legal name of the vendor, including trade name if applicable.

Address, City, State, Zip and Phone Number -- Enter the vendor's street address, city, state, zip code and telephone number.

Vendor Email – Enter the vendor's primary email address.

Vendor FEIN – Please enter the vendor's Federal Employment Identification Number.

Business Type - Check the appropriate box that represents the vendor's type of business formation.

Listing of officers, shareholders, partners or members - Based on the box checked for the business type, provide the corresponding information. (A complete list must be provided.)

Part 2: DISCLOSURE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Read the three types of political contributions that require disclosure and, if applicable, provide the recipient's information. The definition of "Business Entity/Vendor" and "Contribution" can be found on pages 3 and 4 of this form.

Name of Recipient - Enter the full legal name of the recipient.

Address of Recipient - Enter the recipient's street address.

Date of Contribution - Indicate the date the contribution was given.

Amount of Contribution - Enter the dollar amount of the contribution.

Type of Contribution - Select the type of contribution from the examples given.

Contributor's Name - Enter the full name of the contributor.

Relationship of the Contributor to the Vendor - Indicate the relationship of the contributor to the vendor. (e.g. officer or shareholder of the company, partner, member, parent company of the vendor, subsidiary of the vendor, etc.)

NOTE: If form is being completed electronically, click "Add a Contribution" to enter additional contributions. Otherwise, please attach additional pages as necessary.

Check the box under the recipient information if no reportable contributions have been solicited or made by the business entity. **This box must be checked if there are no contributions to report.**

Part 3: CERTIFICATION

Check Box A if the representative completing the Certification and Disclosure form is doing so on behalf of the business entity <u>and all</u> individuals and/or entities whose contributions are attributable to the business entity. (No additional Certification and Disclosure forms are required if BOX A is checked.)

Check Box B if the representative completing the Certification and Disclosure form is doing so on behalf of the business entity <u>and all</u> individuals and/or entities whose contributions are attributable to the business entity <u>with the exception</u> of those individuals and/or entities that submit their own separate form. For example, the representative is not signing on behalf of the vice president of a corporation, but all others. The vice president completes a separate Certification and Disclosure form. (Additional Certification and Disclosure forms are required from those individuals and/or entities that the representative is not signing on behalf of and are included with the business entity's submittal.)

Check Box C if the representative completing the Certification and Disclosure form is doing so on behalf of the business entity only. (Additional Certification and Disclosure forms are required from all individuals and/or entities whose contributions are attributable to the business entity and must be included with the business entity submittal.)

Check Box D when a sole proprietor is completing the Certification and Disclosure form or when an individual or entity whose contributions are attributable to the business entity is completing a separate Certification and Disclosure form.

Read the five statements of certification prior to signing.

The representative authorized to complete the Certification and Disclosure form must sign and print her/his name, title or position and enter the date.

Public Law 2005, Chapter 51 and Executive Order 117 (2008)

State Agency Procedure for Submitting Form(s)

The State Agency should submit the completed and signed Two-Year Vendor Certification and Disclosure forms either electronically to: cd134@treas.nj.gov or regular mail at: Chapter 51 Review Unit, P.O. Box 230, 33 West State Street, Trenton, NJ 08625-0230. Original forms should remain with the State Agency and copies should be sent to the Chapter 51 Review Unit.

Business Entity Procedure for Submitting Form(s)

The business entity should return this form to the contracting State Agency.

The business entity can submit the Certification and Disclosure form directly to the Chapter 51 Review Unit only when:

- The business entity is approaching its two-year certification expiration date and is seeking certification renewal;
- · The business entity had a change in its ownership structure; OR
- The business entity made any contributions during the period in which its last two-year certification was in effect, or during the term of a contract with a State Agency.

Questions & Information

Questions regarding the interpretation or application of Public Law 2005, Chapter 51 (N.J.S.A. 19:44A-20.13) or E.O. 117 (2008) may be submitted electronically through the Division of Purchase and Property website at: https://www.state.nj.us/treas/purchase/eo134questions.shtml

Reference materials and forms are posted on the Political Contributions Compliance website at: http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/purchase/execorder134.shtml

USEFUL DEFINITIONS for the purposes of Chapter 51 and Executive Order 117

- "Business Entity/Vendor" means any natural or legal person, business corporation, professional services corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited partnership, business trust, association or any other legal commercial entity organized under the laws of New Jersey or any other state or foreign jurisdiction. The definition also includes (i) if a business entity is a for-profit corporation, any officer of the corporation and any other person or business entity that owns or controls 10% or more of the stock of the corporation; (ii) if a business entity is a professional corporation, any shareholder or officer; (iii) if a business entity is a general partnership, limited partnership or limited liability partnership, any partner; (iv) if a business entity is a sole proprietorship, the proprietor; (v) if the business entity is any other form of entity organized under the laws of New Jersey or any other state or foreign jurisdiction, any principal, officer or partner thereof; (vi) any subsidiaries directly or indirectly controlled by the business entity; (vii) any political organization organized under 26 U.S.C.A. § 527 that is directly or indirectly controlled by the business entity, other than a candidate committee, election fund, or political party committee; and (viii) with respect to an individual who is included within the definition of "business entity," that individual's civil union partner and any child residing with that person.
- "Officer" means a president, vice president with senior management responsibility, secretary, treasurer, chief executive
 officer or chief financial officer of a corporation or any person routinely performing such functions for a corporation. Please
 note that officers of non-profit entities are excluded from this definition.
- "Partner" means one of two or more natural persons or other entities, including a corporation, who or which are joint
 owners of and carry on a business for profit, and which business is organized under the laws of this State or any other state
 or foreign jurisdiction, as a general partnership, limited partnership, limited liability partnership, limited liability company,
 limited partnership association, or other such form of business organization.

₁Contributions made by a spouse, civil union partner or resident child to a candidate for whom the contributor is eligible to vote or to a political party committee within whose jurisdiction the contributor resides are permitted.

USEFUL DEFINITIONS for the purposes of Chapter 51 and Executive Order 117

- "Contribution" is a contribution, including an in-kind contribution, in excess of \$300.00 in the aggregate per election
 made to or received by a candidate committee, joint candidates committee, or political committee; or per calendar
 year made to or received by a political party committee, legislative leadership committee, or continuing political
 committee or a currency contribution in any amount.
- "In-kind Contribution" means a contribution of goods or services received by a candidate committee, joint candidates committee, political committee, political committee, political party committee, or legislative leadership committee, which contribution is paid for by a person or entity other than the recipient committee, but does not include services provided without compensation by an individual volunteering a part of or all of his or her time on behalf of a candidate or committee.
- "Continuing Political Committee" includes any group of two or more persons acting jointly, or any corporation, partnership, or any other incorporated or unincorporated association, including a political club, political action committee, civic association or other organization, which in any calendar year contributes or expects to contribute at least \$4,300 to aid or promote the candidacy of an individual, or the candidacies of individuals, for elective public office, or the passage or defeat of a public questions, and which may be expected to make contributions toward such aid or promotion or passage or defeat during a subsequent election, provided that the group, corporation, partnership, association or other organization has been determined by the Commission to be a continuing political committee in accordance with N.J.S.A. 19:44A-8(b).
- "Candidate Committee" means a committee established by a candidate pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:44A-9(a), for the purpose of receiving contributions and making expenditures.
- "State Political Party Committee" means a committee organized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:5-4.
- "County Political Party Committee" means a committee organized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:5-3.
- "Municipal Political Party Committee" means a committee organized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:5-2.
- "Legislative Leadership Committee" means a committee established, authorized to be established, or designated by
 the President of the Senate, the Minority Leader of the Senate, the Speaker of the General Assembly, or the Minority
 Leader of the General Assembly pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:44A-10.1 for the purpose of receiving contributions and making
 expenditures.
- · "Political Party Committee" means:
 - 1. The State committee of a political party, as organized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:5-4;
 - 2. Any county committee of a political party, as organized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:5-3; or
 - 3. Any municipal committee of a political party, as organized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:5-2



Division of Purchase and PropertyTwo-Year Chapter 51/Executive Order 117 Vendor Certification and Disclosure of Political Contributions

	FOR STATE AGENCY U	SE ONLY
Solicitation, RFP, or Contract No		Award Amount
Description of Services		
State Agency Name	Contact Perso	on
Phone Number	Contact Emai	1
Check if the Contract / Agreement	is Being Funded Using FHWA Fu	unds
Part 1: Business Entity Informa	ation_	Please check if requesting recertification \Box
Full Legal Business Name	(Including trade name if	- Parkia
Address		аррисаріе)
		p Phone
Vendor Email	Vendor FEIN (SS# if	sole proprietor/natural person)
□ Corporation: LIST ALL OFFICERS a □ Professional Corporation: LIST ALL □ Partnership: LIST ALL PARTNERS v □ Limited Liability Company: LIST AL □ Sole Proprietor Note: "Officers" means President, Vice	MUST BE COMPLETED: nd any 10% and greater shareho . OFFICERS and ALL SHAREHOLD with any equity interest .L MEMBERS with any equity interest .President with senior management orporation, or any person routinel	older ERS
All Officers of a Corporatio		or <u>all</u> shareholder of a PC
All Equity partners of a Pa	artnership	All Equity members of a LLC

IMPORTANT NOTE: You <u>must</u> review the definition of "contribution" and "business entity" on the Information and Instructions form prior to completing Part 2 and Part 3. The Information and Instructions form is available at: http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/purchase/forms.shtml#eo134

<u>Part 2: Disclosure of Contributions by the business entity or any person or entity whose contributions are attributable to the business entity.</u>

1. Report below all contributions solicited or made during the 4 years immediately preceding the commencement of negotiations or submission of a proposal to any:

Political organization organized under Section 527 of the Internal Revenue Code and which also meets the definition of a continuing political committee as defined in N.J.S.A. (See Information and Instructions form.)

2. Report below all contributions solicited or made during the 5 $\frac{1}{2}$ years immediately preceding the commencement of negotiations or submission of a proposal to any:

Candidate Committee for or Election Fund of any Gubernatorial or Lieutenant Gubernatorial candidate State Political Party Committee County Political Party Committee

3. Report below all contributions solicited or made during the 18 months immediately preceding the commencement of negotiations or submission of a proposal to any:

Municipal Political Party Committee Legislative Leadership Committee

certification on behalf of the business entity.

Full Legal Name of Recipient						
Address of Recipient						
Date of Contribution Amount of Contribution						
Type of Contribution (i.e. currency, check, loan, in-kind)						
Contributor Name						
Relationship of Contributor to the Vendor If this form is not being completed electronically, please attach additional contributions on separate page.						
Remove Contribution Click the "Add a Contribution" tab to enter additional contributions.						
Add a Contribution						
☐ Check this box only if no political contributions have been solicited or made by the business entity or any person or entity whose contributions are attributable to the business entity. Part 3: Certification						
(A) I am certifying on behalf of the business entity <u>and all</u> individuals and/or entities whose contributions are attributable to the business entity as listed on Page 1 under <u>Part 1: Vendor Information</u> .						
(B) I am certifying on behalf of the business entity <u>and all</u> individuals and/or entities whose contributions are attributable to the business entity as listed on Page 1 under <u>Part 1: Vendor Information</u> , except for the individuals and/or entities who are submitting separate Certification and Disclosure forms which are included with this submittal.						
(C) I am certifying on behalf of the business entity only; any remaining persons or entities whose contributions are attributable to the business entity (as listed on Page 1) have completed separate Certification and Disclosure forms which are included with this submittal.						
(D) \square I am certifying as an individual or entity whose contributions are attributable to the business entity.						
I hereby certify as follows:						
1. I have read the Information and Instructions accompanying this form prior to completing the						

2. All reportable contributions made by or attributable to the business entity have been listed above.

- 3. The business entity has not knowingly solicited or made any contribution of money, pledge of contribution, including in-kind contributions, that would bar the award of a contract to the business entity unless otherwise disclosed above:
 - a) Within the 18 months immediately preceding the commencement of negotiations or submission of a proposal for the contract or agreement to:
 - (i) A candidate committee or election fund of any candidate for the public office of Governor or Lieutenant Governor or to a campaign committee or election fund of holder of public office of Governor or Lieutenant Governor: OR
 - (ii) Any State, County or Municipal political party committee; OR
 - (iii)Any Legisative Leadership committee.
 - b) During the term of office of the current Governor or Lieutenant Governor to:
 - (i) A candidate committee or election fund of a holder of the public office of Governor or Lieutenant Governor; OR
 - (ii) Any State or County political party committee of the political party that nominated the sitting Governor or Lieutenant Governor in the last gubernatorial election.
 - c) Within the 18 months immediately preceding the last day of the sitting Governor or Lieutenant Governor's first term of office to:
 - (i) A candidate committee or election fund of the incumbent Governor or Lieutenant Governor; OR
 - (ii) Any State or County political party committee of the political party that nominated the sitting Governor or Lieutenant Governor in the last gubernatorial election.
- 4. During the term of the contract/agreement the business entity has a continuing responsibility to report, by submitting a new Certification and Disclosure form, any contribution it solicits or makes to:
 - (a) Any candidate committee or election fund of any candidate or holder of the public office of Governor or Lieutenant Governor; OR
 - (b) Any State, County or Municipal political party committee; OR
 - (c) Any Legislative Leadership committee.

The business entity further acknowledges that contributions solicited or made during the term of the contract/agreement may be determined to be a material breach of the contract/agreement.

5. During the two-year certification period the business entity will report any changes in its ownership structure (including the appointment of an officer within a corporation) by submitting a new Certification and Disclosure form indicating the new owner(s) and reporting said owner(s) contributions.

I certify that the foregoing statemer	<u>s in Parts 1, 2 and 3 are true. I am aware that if any of the statement </u>	S
are willfully false, I may be subject	punishment.	
Signed Name	Print Name	
Title/Position	Date	

Procedure for Submitting Form(s)

The contracting State Agency should submit this form to the Chapter 51 Review Unit when it has been required as part of a contracting process. The contracting State Agency should submit a copy of the completed and signed form(s), to the Chapter 51 Unit and retain the original for their records.

The business entity should return this form to the contracting State Agency. The business entity can submit this form directly to the Chapter 51 Review Unit only when it -

- · Is approaching its two-year certification expiration date and wishes to renew certification;
- · Had a change in its ownership structure; OR
- Made any contributions during the period in which its last two-year certification was in effect, or during the term of a contract with a State Agency.

Forms should be submitted either electronically to:cd134@treas.nj.gov, or regular mail at: Chapter 51 Review Unit, P.O. Box 230, 33 West State Street, Trenton, NJ 08625.

State of New Jersey Division of Purchase and Property DISCLOSURE OF INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES IN IRAN

Solicitation Number:	Bidder/Offeror:
renew a contract must complete the cer the person or entity's parents, subsidiari the Treasury as a person or entity eng- violation of the principles which are the	person or entity that submits a bid or proposal or otherwise proposes to enter into or tification below to attest, under penalty of perjury, that the person or entity, or one of es, or affiliates, is not identified on a list created and maintained by the Department of aging in investment activities in Iran. If the Director finds a person or entity to be in subject of this law, s/he shall take action as may be appropriate and provided by law, and to, imposing sanctions, seeking compliance, recovering damages, declaring the or suspension of the person or entity.
I certify, pursuant to Public Law 2012	c. 25, that the person or entity listed above for which I am authorized to bid/renew:
is not providing goods or services provides oil or liquefied natural ga liquefied natural gas, for the energ	of \$20,000,000 or more in the energy sector of Iran, including a person or entity that stankers, or products used to construct or maintain pipelines used to transport oil or y sector of Iran, AND
is not a financial institution that ex if that person or entity will use the	tends \$20,000,000 or more in credit to another person or entity, for 45 days or more, credit to provide goods or services in the energy sector in Iran.
subsidiaries, or affiliates has enga description of the activities must be p	is unable to make the above certification because it or one of its parents, ged in the above-referenced activities, a detailed, accurate and precise rovided in part 2 below to the Division of Purchase and Property under penalty will result in the proposal being rendered as non-responsive and appropriate be assessed as provided by law.
You must provide a detailed, accurate subsidiaries or affiliates, engaging	RTHER INFORMATION RELATED TO INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES IN IRAN and precise description of the activities of the bidding person/entity, or one of its parents, in the investment activities in Iran outlined above by completing the boxes below. ROVIDE INFORMATION RELATIVE TO THE ABOVE QUESTIONS. PLEASE PROVIDE ON. IF YOU NEED TO MAKE ADDITIONAL ENTRIES, CLICK THE "ADD AN ADDITIONAL ACTIVITIES ENTRY" BUTTON.
Name	Relationship to Bidder/Offeror
Description of Activities	
Duration of Engagement	Anticipated Cessation Date
Bidder/Offeror Contact Name	Contact Phone Number
ADD AN ADDITIONAL ACTIVITIES E	NTRY
person or entity. I acknowledge that the State am under a continuing obligation from the date in writing of any changes to the answers of infefalse statement or misrepresentation in this ce	hereby represent and state that the foregoing information and any attachments thereto to the I attest that I am authorized to execute this certification on behalf of the above-referenced of New Jersey is relying on the information contained herein and thereby acknowledge that of this certification through the completion of any contracts with the State to notify the State rmation contained herein. I acknowledge that I am aware that it is a criminal offense to make a rtification, and if I do so, I recognize that I am subject to criminal prosecution under the law of my agreement(s) with the State of New Jersey and that the State at its option may declare roid and unenforceable. Signature:
Title:	Date:

MACBRIDE PRINCIPLES FORM

BIDDER'S REQUIREMENT: TO PROVIDE A CERTIFICATION IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE MACBRIDE PRINCIPLES AND NORTHERN IRELAND ACT OF 1989.

Pursuant to Public Law 1995, c. 134, a responsible bidder selected, after public bidding, by the Director of the Division of Purchase and Property, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:34-12, must complete the certification below by checking one of the two representations listed and signing where indicated. If a bidder who would otherwise be awarded a purchase, contract or agreement does not complete the certification, then the Director may determine, in accordance with applicable law and rules, that it is in the best interest of the State to award the purchase, contract or agreement to another bidder who has completed the certification and has submitted a bid within five (5) percent of the most advantageous bid. If the Director finds contractors to be in violation of the principles which are the subject of this law, they shall take such action as may be appropriate and provided by law, rule or contract, including but not limited to, imposing sanctions, seeking compliance, recovering damages, declaring the party in default and seeking debarment or suspension of the party.

I certify, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:34-12.2, that the entity for which I am authorized to bid:

Has no ongoing business activities in Northern Ireland and does not maintain a physical presence therein through the operation of offices, plants, factories, or similar facilities, either directly or indirectly, through intermediaries, subsidiaries or affiliated companies over which it maintains effective control; or

Will take lawful steps in good faith to conduct any business operations it has in Northern Ireland in accordance with the MacBride Principles of nondiscrimination in employment as set forth in N.J.S.A. 52:18A -89.8 and in conformance with the Fair Employment (Northern Ireland) Act of 1989, and permit independent monitoring of their compliance with those principles.

Certification: I, being duly sworn upon my oath, hereby represent that the foregoing information and any attachments thereto to the best of my knowledge are true and complete. I acknowledge: that I am authorized to execute this certification on behalf of the bidder; that the State of New Jersey is relying on the information contained herein and that I am under a continuing obligation from the date of this certification through the completion of any contracts with the State to notify the State in writing of any changes to the information contained herein; that I am aware that it is a criminal offense to make a false statement or misrepresentation in this certification, and if I do so, I am subject to criminal prosecution under the law and that it will constitute a material breach of my agreement(s) with the State, permitting the State to declare any contract(s) resulting from this certification void and unenforceable.

Signature:			
Print Name:			
Title:			
Firm Name:			
Date:			

"N.J.S.A. 52:34-13.2 CERTIFICATION"

SOURCE DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATION FORM

Contractor:	Waive	er Number:
I hereby certify and say:		
I have personal knowledge the Contractor.	of the facts set forth herein ar	nd am authorized to make this Certification on behalf of
	partment of the Treasury, Sta	ne referenced contract issued by the Division of te of New Jersey (the "Division"), in accordance with the
If any of the services cannot	ot be performed within the Unit	rformed by the Contractor and all Subcontractors. red States, the Contractor shall state, with specificity the h additional pages if necessary.
Contractor and/or Subcontractor	Description of Services	Performance Location[s] Reasons why services by COUNTRY cannot be performed in USA
	xtension thereof will be immed	ation during the term of any contract awarded under the diately reported by the Contractor to the Director, Division of
		on has been provided by the Contractor to form the basis in the United States and whether to seek the approval of
services declared above to written determination by the failure to shift the services	be provided within the Unite ne Director that extraordinary would result in economic hard act, which contract will be subj	d States to sources outside the United States, prior to a circumstances require the shift of services or that the dship to the State of New Jersey, the Contractor shall be ect to termination for cause pursuant to Section 3.5b.1 of
		behalf of the Contractor in order to induce the Division to n is relying upon the truth of the statements contained
	ny knowledge and belief, the f illfully false, I am subject to pu	foregoing statements by me are true. I am aware that if nishment.
Contractor:[Na	me of Organization or Entity]	
Ву:		Title:
Print Name:		Date:



Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification

▶ Go to www.irs.gov/FormW9 for instructions and the latest information.

Give Form to the requester. Do not send to the IRS.

	1	Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank					-			
	2 Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above									
s on page 3.	following seven boxes. Individual/sole proprietor or C Corporation S Corporation Partnership Trust/estate						4 Exemptions (codes apply only to certain entities, not individuals; see instructions on page 3): Exempt payee code (if any)			
g g	١,					LAGI	iipi payt	se cour	= (II ally)	
두 를		Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partne				_				
Print or type. Specific Instructions on		Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member of LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless the another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes.	owner o gle-men	of the LI	LC is	code	nption f e (if any		ATCA re	porting
н ё	١.	is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its own	ner.							
ě		Other (see instructions) ►								ide the U.S.)
See S c	5 Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions. Requester's name an					and ac	ldress (optiona	al)	
S	6	6 City, state, and ZIP code								
	7	List account number(s) here (optional)								
Par	t I	Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)								
		ur TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to a	oid/	Soc	cial se	curity	numbe	r		
backu reside entitie	p v nt s,	withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part I, later. For other t is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see <i>How to g</i> o	for a			_		_		
TIN, la	ate	.		or						
		the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name	and	Em	ploye	r ident	ificatio	n num	ber	
Numb	er	To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter.				-				
Par	П	Certification						-	 	
		enalties of perjury, I certify that:								
	•	umber shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for	a num	her to	he is	sued :	to me).	and		
2. I ar Ser	n n vic	ot subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) e (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest ger subject to backup withholding; and) I have	e not b	een r	notifie	d by th	e Inte		
3. I ar	n a	U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and								

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because

	iture of	
Joing.iu	nture of person ►	Date ▶

General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted.

Future developments. For the latest information about developments related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormW9.

Purpose of Form

An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number (SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number (EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information returns include, but are not limited to, the following.

• Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)

- Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual funds)
- Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross proceeds)
- Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other transactions by brokers)
- Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)
- Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)
- Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 1098-T (tuition)
- Form 1099-C (canceled debt)
- Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident alien), to provide your correct TIN.

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding,



SUPPLIER FORM

Procurement Department 2039 Kennedy Blvd., Hepburn Hall, Room 111 Jersey City, New Jersey 07305-1597 Telephone 201-200-3159 Fax: 201-200-3238

Email: ps@njcu.edu

Instructions/Purpose: In order to comply with various government regulations and to update our supplier information files, please complete and return this form to the email above.

= =							
Supplier Name:							
PURCHASE ORDE	ER INFORMATION						
Mailing Address:							
City:		State:		ZIP:			
Sales Contact:			Title:				
Direct Phone:		General Phone:		Fax:			
Email Address:		General Email:					
PO Dispatch Email Ac	ddress <i>(for use in auto dispa</i>	atch):					
REMIT TO INFOR	MATION (if different fr	om above)					
Mailing Address:							
City:		State:		ZIP:			
AP Contact:			Title:				
Direct Phone:		General Phone:		Fax:			
Email Address:		General Email:					
	: (CHECK ALL THAT API	•					
African American Asian American Multiple Ethnicities							
Hispan	ic American N	lative American	Unspecified				
WOMEN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (WBE)							
SMALL	BUSINESS ENTERPRISE	(SBE)					
NONE (OF THE ABOVE	OTHER (please desc	ribe):				
I ATTEST THAT INFORMATI	ON CONTAINED HEREIN IS TRUE A	AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF	MY KNOWLEDGE. I UNDI	ERSTAND T	HAT ANY INFORMATION		

WILLFULLY FALSIFIED OR OMITTED MAY RESULT IN THIS FIRM BEING DISBARRED FROM BIDDING ON CONTRACTS FOR A PERIOD OF UP TO TWO YEARS, AND LIABILTY ATTENDANT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINIAL PENALTIES. THE COMPLETTION OF THIS FORM IN NO WAY OBLIGES THE UNIVERSITY OR

SIGNATURE DATE

GUARANTEES OPPORTUNITIES TO BID OR RECEIVE ORDERS.



In order to ensure we contact the correct person when issuing information about this RFP please provide the following information:

Point of Contact:	
Title:	
Address:	
Apt/Suite:	
City:	
State:	
Zip Code:	
Telephone Number:	
Fax Number:	
Email address:	